**Site visit by Beth Hannold on 5/1/90.
(House demolished)

HA-367

Jackson House
Toll Gate Road
Bel Air, MD 2101k

This stone house, in badly deteriorated condition, will
probably be torn down soon, as it is located on prime commercial
property. The property on which this vacant house stands, was
owned for almost 100 years by the Amoss family. The house,
itself, is located very close to the site of one of the Bel Air
Turnpike's toll collecting stations which was torn down only a
few years ago to make room for the Harford Mall's parking lot.
No connection can be made at this time, however, between the
Tollgate House and the Jackson house.



HA-367 Before 1858

Hays-Howard-Jackson House
Tollgate Road

Bel Air

Private

This tall, narrow stone rubble house, now standing vacant,
vandalized, and forlorn, was until recently outside the Town
limits, and its style speaks more of countryside than village.
Built sometime before 1858, it has one room to each of its three
floors, the kitchen being in the basement level. In 1858
Nathaniel Hays, brother of Bel Air's wealthy merchant Thomas
Hays, owned the house. For sale, it is severely threatened by
expansion.
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

ii NAME

HISTORIC
Hays-Howard House

AND/OR COMMON
Jackson House

PJLOCATION

STREET & NUMBER

Toll Gate Road

Ist

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Bel Air — VICINITY OF
STATE COUNTY
Maryland Harford
EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—_DISTRICT __PUBLIC —OCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
_XBUILDING(S) X PRIVATE X UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
—STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS . EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —INPROCESS —YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT —_SCIENTIFIC
—BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
X NO __MILITARY _XoTtHer Vacant

Y OWNER OF PROPERTY

NAME
___Edward Jackson

Telephone #:

STREET & NUMBER

124 AliceAnne Street

CITY. TOWN

Bel Air

VICINITY OF

sTATE, z1p code
Maryland 21014

TELOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

COURTHOUSE.

REGISTRY OF DEEDS.ETC. Hapyford County Courthouse

Liber #: 160
Folio #: 442

STREET & NUMBER
Main Street

CITY. TOWN STATE
— Bel Air Maryland
ﬂ REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

DATE

—FEDERAL

—STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN

STATE




DESCRIPTION HE-3¢ 7

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT X_DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X _ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD —RUINS X_ALTERED ?) —MOVED DATE
_FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This small three and a half story stone rubble house with a tin gable roof
is on the Toll Gate Road across from Harford Mall. It is approximately two bays
by two bays and seriously deteriorated. Larger stone quoins mark the corner and
flat brick arches top the flat wooden window surrounds. The windows are -
or were - 6/6. The windows in the gables may have been 2/2. The east and west
elevations are blind except for the gable windows. The main entrance was in the
east bay of the second level on the south side. The door and the porch are gone.
There are no marks on the stonework to suggest that the porch was anything but
an uncovered stoop.

On the west side (away from the road) is a shed addition on the first level.
The north half is enclosed in shiplap and is probably a pantry. The south half
is a porch sheltering the entrance to this Tevel.

Peering into this ruinous bulk, one can observe a large cooking fireplace
in the west wall of the first level. The ruins of an inside end chimney appear
on the roof in the west end. It appears that the kitchen was in the basement
(or first level) and that there was one room on each level.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



B} SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC __ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING _ LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE _—RELIGION
—1400-1499 _—ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _—CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—.1500-1599% __AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
——1600-1699 X_ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY __SOCIALHUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING —MUSIC __THEATER
X_1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT _PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
X 1900 —COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY}
__INVENTION
" SPECIFIC DATES  before 1858 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This tall, narrow stone house was built sometime before 1858. It appears on
the map of that year as the property of Nathaniel Hays, brother to Thomas Hays,
wealthy Bel Air merchant. Somehow, it seems doubtful that they 1ived there. It
looks more 1ike a tenant house. Why they built it of stone is a good question.
Stone was not a common building material in the neighborhood. Hays died in 1863,
and Teft the real estate in Maryland to his sister Harriet B. Hays and his nephew
Stevenson Archer as joint tenants with right of survivorship. Harriet died in
1872.

Stevenson Archer sold the property to Patrick Howard in 1885 but did not
record the deed. Howard had been 1living there at least since 1878, for his name
appears on the map of that year, and possibly since Hays' death. Howard
mortgaged the property in 1885 for $400. 1In 1892, under pressure, Archer conveyed
the property to Howard (63/211). Archer was in the penitentiary at the time; his
recital of the facts of the case in the deed 63/211 is at variance with the will
records, as a matter of fact. He swore that Maria Hays, Nathaniel Hays' wife, had
a life interest. Since he was executor of Hays' will, he might be expected to
know, but Hays Tleft his wife only her dower according to the will as recorded. At
any rate, it appears that the irregularity of this transaction did not come to
Tight when Archer went to prison in 1890 but when Maria died in 1892. In any
case, Howard finally got title in 1892 only to claim the insolvency laws in 1894.
The trustees sold this property to Thomas H. Robinson that year (81/189). In
1908 Robinson sold it to J. Clay Jackson and George Willis James (125/57). Jackson
bought James out in 1918 (160/442). The present owner is Edward P. Jackson, who
inherited it from his father, J. Clay Jackson.

The house is in serious danger of demolition. It is for sale in a commercial-
industrial area, and it is to be supposed that a buyer would be more interested in
the site than in the building which is in bad condition.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



HA-3L7
nMA]OR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

1858, 1878 Maps
Harford Democrat

Harford County Land Records & Will Records

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

This property occupies parcel #665 in the Town of Bel Air.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY -

[$1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Marilynn Larew, Architectural Historian 5 December 1979
ORGANIZATION DATE
Town of Bel Air 838-8700
STREET & NUMBER

TELEPHONE
39 Hickory Avenue
CITY OR TOWN

Bel Air

STATE

Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

Ps- 1108



160/442

125/57

81/189

HA-367

TITLE: Jackson House

Toll Gate Road

24 September 1918

George Willis James & Ella
to

J. Clay Jackson

their % 2 a.

11 June 1908
Thomas H. Robinson & Clara
to
J. Clay Jackson & George Willis James

21 May 1894

George L. VanBibber & S. A. Williams,
permanent trustees

to

Thomas H. Robinson

they were trustees of Patrick Howard, an
insolvent debtor. The land belonged to
Nathaniel Hays. Hays left it to Harriet B.
Hays, his sister, and Stevenson Archer, his
nephew (will 1863, 7/916), and then to the
survivor. Harriet died in 1872. Stevenson
Archer sold the property to Patrick Howard

in 1885, but he did not record the deed. Under
pressure, he conveyed in 1892 (63/211).
goward had mortgaged the property in 1885 for
400.
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Title Search

9/24/1918

6/11/1908

6/21/1894

8/13/1892

6/22/1894

L/L/189L

5/4/1889

12/2/1867

7/11/1867

5/23/1864

1/26/1861

HA- 367

Grantor:

Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Acreage:
Grantor:

Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Grantor:

Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Grantor:

John Willis James and Ella,
his wife

Je Clay Jackson

2 acres more or less

Thomas H. Robinson and wife

J. Clay Jackson and George
Willis

2 acres more or less - buildings

George L. VanBibber and
Stevenson A. Williams, permanent
trustees

Thomas Robinson

"Parcel No. 5" = 2 acres more or
less = buildings

Patrick Howard, Insolvent Debtor
Thomas H. Robinson, George L.
VanBibber - appointed trustees
(permanent)

Thomas H. and Clara Robinson
Patrick Howard
1 acre more or less - buildings

Amanda Amos
Thomas Robinson

Thomas H. Robinson, trustee
Amanda Amos

Corbin Amos and wife
Joseph Todd

Corbin Amos and wife

Moses D. Price

19 acres more or less including
buildings

Stevenson Archer, trustee
Corbin Amos

Philip Kennedy and wife



WG 12 53
Mortgage WG 12 53
WG 12 53
JLG E 289

7/14/1860

10/23/1782

Grantee:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Corbin Amos

Robert Amos
Corbin Amos
Buildings

Robert Amos
Corbin Amos

Joshua Amos, deceased
Corbin Amos

James Amos

Joshua Amos

150 acres more or less -
including buildings



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST HA-367

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

iNAME **Site visit by Beth Hannold on 5/1/90.

HISTORIC (House demolished)

AND/OR COMMON

Jackson House

EJLOCATION

STREET & NUMBER

Tollgate Road (across from Montgomery Ward)

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Bel Air — VICINITY OF first
STATE COUNTY
—laryland Harford
[EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC Xoccuriep __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
X BUILDING(S) _XPRIVATE __UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT _ RELIGIOUS
_OBJECT __IN PROCESS XYES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
__NO __MILITARY __OTHER

EYOWNER OF PROPERTY

NAME
Fdward P. Jackson

Telephone #:

STREET & NUMBER

124 Alice Anne Street

CITY. TOWN
Bel Air VICINITY OF

sTaTe, zip code
MD__ 2101k

IFHLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

courTHouse, Harford County Courthouse
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC.

Liber #: 160
Folio #: 442

STREET & NUMBER
LO South Main Street

CITY. TOWN STATE
—_— Rel Air. Marvlapd 21014
ﬂ REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

—FEDERAL _STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN

STATE




DESCRIPTION NG-3(77

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT X DETERIORATED XUNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
—GOoOoD —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This drastically deteriorated, rubble stone dwelling is located on prime comm-
ercial property near the corner of Route 1 and Tollgate Road directly across the
street from the Harford Mall. Needless to say, this house is probably not long for
this world.

The house is two bays by one and has three levels and an attic. Large quoins
are at the corners of the stone walls. The gable flank roof is slate. A wide, brick
chimney is located on the west gable end flush with the wall.

Windows on the ground elevation are six lights over three. A door is located
on the west facade where a one story lean-to with German siding serves as an entrance
porch and storage bin. The door on this side is of beaded board and batten. A
large stone lintel is above this entrance. Inside, this level consists of one
room-a kitchen. Floors have been covered by several layers of linoleum. Walls are
plaster over stone. A large stone fireplace is located on the west wall. 4 hole
had been punched through the flue for a stoWe pipe. On the west wall there is a
small closet and the entrance to the boxed in, winding stairway.

A hallway with a straight staircase and the parlor is located on the second
elevation. Windows on this elevation are six lights over six. The principle entrance
is located on the south facade. There is no longer a porch or steps leading to this
door, however. A fireplace in the parlor has been altered for the use of a wood
stove.

There are two rooms on the third elevation. Windows on this level are also
six/six. Zntrance to the attic is through a door on the east well of the landing.
The enclosed, winding stairway to the attic is deteriorated. No survey was made
of the attic. Windows are present in the attic: two-four light casement windows
are on the west end, one £/1 sash is on the east.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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] SIGNIFICANCE NE-367]
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
-~PREHISTORIC _ARCHEULOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
400-1499 —ARCHEOQLOGY-HISTORIC -—CONSERVATION —_LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 _—AGRICULTURE —-—ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—__1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —_MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 _ART _—ENGINEERING __MuUSIC __THEATER
X.1800-1899 —COMMERCE — EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT _—PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1900- — COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This stone house, in badly deteriorated condition, will probably be torn down

soon, as it is located on prime commercial property.

The property on which this

vacant house stands, was owned for almost 100 years by the Amoss family. The house,
itself, is located very close to the site of one of the Bel Air Turnpike's toll collect-
ing station which was torn down only a few years ago to make room for the Harford
Mall's parking lot. No connection can be made at this time, however, between the

Tollgate House and the Jackson house.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EAMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

1783 Maryland Tax List Wright, C. Milton; Our Harford
1798 Federal Tax List Heritage, French Bray Press,
1814 Maryland Tax List Baltimore, 1967.

Preston, Walter W; History of Harford County Harford Directory, 1953.

Press of the Sun Book Office, Baltimore, 190l.
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

[JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY _Z_aQI‘_QS_m_QI‘_e__QL_ less

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

This property is bounded by Toll Gate Road on the east and is surrounded

by commercial properties.

STATE

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

COUNTY

STATE COUNTY
EElFORM PREPARED BY

NAME / FITLE

Susan M, Deeney, Field Historian

ORGANIZATION DATE

Hictorice District Commission April, 1978
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHUNE

LS South Main Street 838-6000, ext. 207
CITY OR TOWN STATE

Del Air Marvland 21014

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PsS- 1108
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NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
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forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
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I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.
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